
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

1

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, JUNE 10, 2008 – 7:30 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Johnson at 7:30 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. ROLL CALL. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Council Members Betts, Gyllenblad, and Wallace 
STAFF: Administrator Hirsch, Attorney Vose, Planners Goodrum and Lorsung,  
ABSENT: Council Member Wenck 
VISITORS: Jessica Laabs, Al Sterner, Bob Frank, John and Cathy Zeglin, Mike Zeglin, Richard & Pat 

Meyer, LuAnn Brenno, Barb Janas, Liza MacMillan, Brian Kirk, Michael Karn, Brett 
Esterberg, John Quinlan, Planning Commission Chair Brad Spencer, Harry Pool, Pam 
Reed, Troy Denneson 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
Approve: 

• Board of Review minutes, May 13, 2008 
• Reconvene of Board of Review minutes, May 27, 2008 
• Council minutes, May 27, 2008 
• Accounts payable for June 2008 
• First quarter report, ABDO 
• Resolution No. 08-0610-01 Approving Conditional Use Permit for Art Ahlstrom for a cold storage 

accessory building. 
• Resolution No. 08-0610-02 Authorizing the execution of a Joint Cooperation agreement between 

the City of Independence and Hennepin County for participation in the Urban Hennepin County 
Community Development Block Grant Program in FY 2009-2011. 

 
Motion by Betts, second by Wallace, to approve the consent agenda. All present voted aye. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER 

OPEN/MISC. 
 
Johnson added Troy Denneson to the agenda. 
 
John Zeglin asked to be added to the agenda. 
 
Pam Reed asked to be added to the agenda. 
 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

2

6. REPORTS OF BOARDS & COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
Gyllenblad: Nothing to report. 
Wallace: Parks Commission meeting.   
Betts: SLUC Conference regarding corn biofuel, Maple Plain Planning presentation on water 

gardens and wetlands.  
Mayor: Energy, Environment and Natural Resources Committee meeting in Cleveland, Ohio on 

behalf of the League of Minnesota Cities, Orono Graduation, Orono Retirement Breakfast, 
WeCan Annual Meeting, WeCan Board meeting, LMC Governance Committee meeting, 
LMC Board meeting. 

Hirsch: Parks Commission meeting, Meeting with Maple Plain City Administrator Jason Zeimer & 
Chief Ray McCoy regarding projected budget cuts, Conference call with Building 
Inspector/Code Enforcement officer Bruce Satek and Kimley-Horn to discuss projects. 

 
7. PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL, RICHARD MEYER, 705 COPELAND ROAD (PID# 31-

118-24-11-0002), REQUEST FOR TWO RURAL VIEW LOTS IN AN AGRICULTURAL 
ZONING DISTRICT. 

 
Lorsung explained that the applicant is seeking formal approval to subdivide two rural view lots in the 
Agricultural Zoning District. The primary use of the property is a golf course, which is a Conditional Use 
in the Agricultural District. The property is approximately 132 acres and has one home. Under the 
Agricultural Zoning District, the applicant could divide the property into three lots, but it only requesting 
a division into two lots. 
 
Lorsung said that the Planning Commission had concerns about whether there was a previous agreement 
about whether the property could be subdivided in the future. The Commission also had concerns about 
the how the density is calculated in the Agricultural Zoning District, whether it was gross or net acres, 
depending on the use of the property. The Commission delayed its decision for one month so that staff 
had time to answer these questions. 
 
Lorsung explained that staff concluded that there was no formal agreement related to future subdivisions 
of the property. The Agricultural Zoning District lists golf courses as a conditional use. After review by 
staff, they came to the conclusion that this is a legal subdivision, based on current zoning. Lorsung 
reported that the Planning Commission recommended approval and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Johnson asked what the Council is being asked to approve at this meeting. 
 
Lorsung explained that the Council is being asked to act on the preliminary plat. If that is approved, staff 
would put together a resolution and a final plat that would need to be approved as well. Lorsung said that 
that issue would come before Council either at the June 24 or July 8 Council meeting.  
 
Vose stated that he looked at whether land that is not an agricultural use is eligible for rural view lot 
subdivisions. He said that that issue depends on how the property is zoned. The property is zoned 
agricultural and a golf course is permitted use, so the property is eligible for subdivision under the rural 
view lot provision.  
 
Betts said that there was an individual who was concerned that the zoning had changed. Betts asked if this 
individual was present at the Planning Commission meeting. 
 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

3

Lorsung said that several people attended the Planning Commission meeting. She also explained that this 
request is only for a subdivision of rural view lots; the Council is not being asked to rezone the property. 
Lorsung said that the Planning Commission did discuss that divisions of lots on semi-public lands could 
become an issue in the future. She stated that the issue could be part of the Comprehensive Plan 
discussion and that the City could create a new zoning guide for these types of properties. 
 
Johnson said there had been some discussion about the old farmstead that the owners had wanted to 
divide years ago and were denied. He asked if there was any record of those decisions.  
 
Lorsung said that that was a separate property with a separate property ID number. She said the property 
was up for review for division years ago and that the division was denied. 
 
Motion by Wallace, second by Gyllenblad, to approve the preliminary plat, subject to the following 
conditions: 

• Approval from the City’s surface water management specialist 
• Amended easement agreement describing the exception areas to the golf course 

All present voted aye. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING. JESSICA LAABS, KIMLEY-HORN, REVIEW AND UPDATE OF THE 

CITY’S STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PROGRAM. 
 
Johnson said that Laabs will be giving a presentation on the City’s storm water runoff that by law is 
required annually. 
 
Laabs told the Council that she is present to discuss the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4). 
She said no official action is required by the Council. The purpose of the public hearing is to gather input 
from residents. 
 
Laabs said MS4 is part of an EPA program. Independence is considered a small MS4. As an MS4, the 
City is required to obtain a permit for control of discharges into the storm water system.  
 
Johnson said that on some newer County roads in Independence, there are water collection tiles that go 
into water pits along the road. 
 
Laabs said that those are a part of the City’s water collection system.  
 
Laabs said that at the state level, the program is administered by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency. 
The overall goal of the permit is to restore and maintain the quality of the water through the management 
of the discharges into the system. The City’s storm water pollution prevention plan is what manages the 
discharges.  
 
Laabs said that the City was given its five-year permit in 2006, which means that the City is in year two 
of its current permit. 
 
Laabs discussed the other water-related programs that are required or incorporated into the permit. One is 
the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) program. Lakes Independence and Sarah are impaired 
waterways and there are certain requirements that the City must meet. The Shoreline Ordinance is another 
required program that the DNR requires to be updated to comply with State ordinance. The City’s grading 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

4

and erosion control ordinances also work with the permit, along with the inspections that are done. She 
said that public education and participation is an important part of all of these different programs. 
 
Laabs said that the program that must be designed for the MS4 permit should be designed to reduce the 
discharge of pollutants to the maximum extent possible, protect water quality and satisfy the appropriate 
water quality requirements of the Clean Water Act.  
 
Laabs said that there are six minimum program elements that have to be included in the permit. The first 
is public education and outreach, which includes distributing educational materials and performing 
outreach to inform citizens. The second is public participation/involvement, which includes public 
hearings. The third is illicit discharge detection and elimination, which includes developing a plan to 
detect and eliminate illicit discharges into the storm water system. The fourth is construction site runoff 
control, which includes controls such as silt fences. The fifth is post construction runoff control, which 
includes actions such as protecting sensitive areas. The sixth element is pollution prevention/good 
housekeeping, which includes activities done by City staff to prevent or reduce pollutant runoff. 
 
Laabs summarized the activities that took place in 2007. These activities included: newsletter articles, 
website information, collecting preliminary data for storm water mapping, redoing information materials, 
conducting a public hearing, training staff, creating a new wetland and grading permit application, 
attending meetings with the PCA and updating the shoreline ordinance. 
 
Laabs said there are some required activities that are coming due in 2008. At the end of June, the storm 
water map is due. In addition, staff went through all of the ordinances to review permits and inspections 
for construction site runoff and post construction runoff control.  
 
Laabs said that if one place was deficient, it would be in the illicit discharge section. However, the City 
doesn’t have a structure in place. If the City develops its storm water system in the future, there could be 
more that the staff could do. In the meantime, the City has been working to set up a process for people to 
report instances when something is going into the lakes that shouldn’t be. 
 
Laabs said the last due date is the incorporation of the TMDL requirements for Lake Independence, which 
is hard to do because Independence was one of the first TMDL lakes. This means that the TMDL 
requirements need to be incorporated, but the City does not have much guidance in doing so. 
 
Laabs said that an annual report is also due June 30, 2008. She said that the Council meeting is part of that 
report. 
 
Laabs said after the meeting, staff will summarize and respond to comments made at the meeting. People 
also have until June 18 to make written comments.  
 
Johnson noted that Betts recently attended a storm water runoff meeting and that Council Members have 
attended watershed meetings.  
 
Laabs responded that having information about officials’ attendance at those meetings would be helpful 
when compiling the report. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
A resident asked if a draft of the preliminary shoreline ordinance is available. 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

5

 
Laabs responded that it is not yet available because the DNR is still reviewing it. The ordinance will have 
to go through a public hearing process before being adopted. 
 
9. BRETT ESTERBERG AND JOHN QUINLAN, 4970 MACCALLISTER DRIVE, REQUEST TO 

BE ALLOWED TO “NOT HAVE TO” INSTALL A FOUR FOOT FENCE AROUND A 
SWIMMING POOL AND TO BE ALLOWED TO USE ANOTHER PRODUCT TO PROVIDE 
SECURITY. 

 
Quinlan said that he is at the meeting on behalf of the Esterbergs, who recently moved to Independence. 
Quinlan is their builder. The Esterbergs are putting in a pool. Currently, City Code requires that they have 
a fence around the pool. Quinlan said that there is new technology for pools that’s a locking electronic 
cover. He said that after calling other cities, he found out that many prefer the locked cover, but will 
accept a fence because a locked covers are expensive. He said Medina recently changed its ordinance and 
Orono doesn’t have any ordinance. Quinlan said he would like the City to put something in place to 
encourage pool covers.  
 
Quinlan said that the covers are about $9,000 and fencing runs between $8,000 to $10,000, so to have 
both is cost prohibitive. 
 
Johnson said that to change an ordinance, the Council would direct staff to create wording for a new 
ordinance. Then the ordinance would be presented at a public hearing before the Council votes on it.  
 
Lorsung said that she wrote the Medina ordinance, which came about because of resident concerns. She 
said the pool covers are quite a bit safer.  
 
Betts asked what insurance companies prefer. 
 
Lorsung said that the insurance companies do accept pool covers as a safety measure. 
 
Quinlan added that insurance companies will give a discount for locking pool covers, but they won’t give 
a discount for a fence. 
 
Betts asked what happens in a power failure. 
 
Quinlan said that he believes that there would be a manual crank that could be used. 
 
Quinlan asked how long it would take to change the ordinance and if the Esterbergs could wait to put up a 
fence until the matter is resolved. 
 
Johnson said that the issue could be on the July agendas. 
 
Quinlan said that timing would work. 
 
Motion by Betts, second by Gyllenblad, to have staff prepare a notice for a public hearing to change the 
language in the swimming pool ordinance to allow locking covers for pools. All present voted aye. 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

6

10. RFP RECOMMENDATIONS AND APPROVAL OF CITY PLANNER, ENGINEER AND 
WATER RESOURCE STAFF. 

 
Johnson said that this issue was tabled from the May 27, 2008 meeting. Wenck is absent from this 
meeting and will be absent from both of the July Council meetings. Hirsch will be absent from the June 
24 Council meeting. Johnson said that City staff is anxious to get some projects started, especially 
engineering projects. The recommendation for City Engineer wasn’t unanimous, but it did lean toward 
one company. Johnson said that the representative from company preferred by Wenck had resigned. 
 
Hirsch said that the Selection Committee interviewed the top three companies for each position. The 
Committee then met a few days later to discuss their top one or two choices. For engineering, BDM was 
the first choice and Hakanson-Anderson was the second choice. BDM was not going to charge miles for 
driving to the City, while Hakanson-Anderson was. The Committee asked Hirsch to call Hakanson-
Anderson to see if the company would drop that charge, which it agreed to do. Public Works Director Dan 
Koch said he felt more comfortable working with BDM. Three of the Committee members wanted to go 
with BDM. Spencer changed his first choice to Hakanson-Anderson because he liked the representative 
the City would be working with. After Spencer changed his top choice, Hirsch found out that the 
representative had resigned from Hakanson-Anderson.  
 
Johnson asked how the Council should proceed. 
 
Hirsch said that in the past, the Council has gone with the majority vote of the Selection Committee. 
 
Johnson said that the biggest concern is the City Engineer because the City does not have a current 
Engineer. 
 
Betts asked Spencer if the resignation changed his opinion. 
 
 Spencer said that the two engineering candidates were very close. He said BDM seemed to be the most 
cost-effective and he would be satisfied with either company. Spencer noted that Wenck felt that because 
the Committee liked Hakanson-Anderson for water resources that it would make sense to also retain the 
company for engineering.  
 
Betts said she would like to name the engineer tonight and that many people on the Selection Committee 
found BDM to be a good company. 
 
Johnson said that the Council could vote on the engineer position tonight and wait on the other two 
positions until August. 
 
Motion by Gyllenbald, second by Betts, to accept the Committee’s recommendation to choose BDM for 
the City Engineer. All present voted aye. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
11. BUILDING INSPECTIONS/ZONING CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER POSITION. 
 
Tabled for a later Council meeting sometime in August.  
 
 
 
 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

7

12. MISC./OPEN. 
 
Troy Denneson 
Denneson said that he is thinking about buying two pieces of land in Independence between County Road 
83 and County Road 92. The City Planner recommended that Denneson come to the City Council and ask 
for approval to access the land to someday build a home because it is on a City cart way. 
 
Johnson said that the driveway south of the airstrip is a City road and runs from County Road 83 to 
County Road 90. Several years ago, when the last subdivision was proposed on Drake Drive, the property 
owner was considering using this road, called Turner Road, as an access. At the same time, a property 
owner on County Road 90 was considering splitting up their property and they were going to build a road 
onto their subdivision. The division was approved, but the property owner decided not to divide the 
property. Another property owner did divide his property off of Drake Drive, which is how the City 
acquired the money to pave Drake Drive. Johnson said that City Code states that when there are cart 
ways, like Turner Road, the City is not responsible for upgrading the road to a piece of property. He said 
that Denneson is looking for approval to use Turner Road as a driveway to access the property. Because 
the road is only 33 feet wide, it is not a full-size road.  
 
Vose asked about the nature of the cart way, which is a type of road that is usually created in a township. 
He said he needs to know what type of road it is in order to know what the City’s rights are. 
 
Johnson responded that it is a platted road with ditches on each side of it.  
 
Betts said that there used to be a house on the road. 
 
Johnson said there is a sugar shack off of the road. 
 
Vose said that if there is half a road platted there, the City can give access to someone; however, the City 
needs to know under what terms. He said that tonight, the Council could direct staff to start working out 
the arrangements to put in some type of access. 
 
Betts asked if that would be like a long driveway. 
 
Johnson responded that it would be like a driveway. Right now, the east half is a gravel driveway and the 
other part is used by pickups, horses and four wheelers. 
 
Johnson said that he doesn’t have any concerns. He said that he would like a motion so that someone 
can’t come in and require the City to build a road for residents.  
 
Denneson said that he’s not asking for the City to put in an entire road.  
 
Wallace asked if in the future, the cart way could potentially be a road.  
 
Johnson said yes, but the City would have to acquire more land to make the road wider.  
 
Wallace said that he has no problem granting access, as long as the property owner understands that 
Turner Road could someday be widened to be a full-sized road. 
 
Betts added that the property owner would not be able to keep other people from using the road. 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

8

 
Johnson said that at one time, a property owner to the west wanted to split a property and demanded that 
the City put in a road. The City allowed the owner to divide the property, but the owner decided not to 
move ahead. Johnson noted that if the properties in the area divide, then at some point the City might need 
to put in a full-size road, which could lead to assessments.  
 
Vose said that if the Council approves private access, it should direct staff to prepare an agreement that 
states that the City is granting the property owner access, but the City does not have any responsibility to 
maintain the cart way and at some point, the City may need to turn the cart way into a regular-sized road. 
 
Johnson said that the cart way had been used more in the past because more people owned property off of 
the cart way. 
 
Motion by Betts, second by Johnson, to direct staff to prepare an agreement with Denneson for use of the 
cart way and bring the agreement back before the Council. All presented voted aye. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
John Zeglin 
Zeglin asked if the Council had received any communication regarding the pipeline coming through the 
western part of the City. He said that the route of the proposed pipeline would go through an area that 
could be developed before many of the other parts of the City. Zeglin asked if the City has any decision as 
to where the pipeline will go. 
 
Hirsch stated that a resolution was passed at the May 13, 2008 Council meeting that supported the 
property owners along Countyline Road by requesting that the pipeline stay in the existing right-of-way, 
where there are existing pipelines. 
 
Johnson said that the Zeglin property is on County Road 12. He asked if the company has contacted the 
Zeglins. 
 
Zeglin said that the company wanted to survey his property, which he did not allow. 
 
Vose said the City does not have much legal authority as to the placement of the pipeline, except where 
the pipeline crosses City right-of-way. The previously passed resolution was sent to the company and it 
did request that the company contact the City. So far, there has been no communication.  
 
Wallace asked what rights the landowners have in this type of a situation. 
 
Vose responded that the company would need an easement and the property owner does not have to give 
it to them. 
 
Johnson asked if the property owner did not give NNG an easement, could it then go through the eminent 
domain process. 
 
Vose said he is unsure if NNG has condemnation rights. If it does have the right, there is a legal process. 
 
Johnson asked if NNG had contacted the Zeglins personally. 
 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

9

Zeglin said that NNG had, and that it held a public meeting for the property owners. He said NNG called 
and asked if the Zeglins would prefer if the line went through their property a couple of hundred feet from 
the proposed route. 
 
Vose said that the difficulty with NNG is that old easements were blanket easements, which gave 
companies the right to put a line anywhere in the property. This makes it difficult for property owners to 
locate an existing line or figure out if one is on their property. Vose said that property owners don’t know 
if easement rights exist. 
 
Zeglin asked if the City should be proactive in trying to get the pipeline placed in an advantageous area. 
 
Johnson said that would put the City in a difficult position of trying to tell NNG what route to take 
through private property. 
 
Hirsch said that she has spoken with a representative from NNG who was sent to start the survey process. 
Hirsch said that he wasn’t interested in working with the City and is no longer with NNG. She said NNG 
representatives assured one property owner that they would not be going through yards, that they would 
be using the right-of-way. 
 
Johnson asked Zeglin to give Hirsch the contact information for the NNG person he had been working 
with. 
 
Hirsch said that resolution does cover the pipeline throughout the entire City, not just north of U.S. 
Highway 12. 
 
Johnson said that the Council could try to get a representative from NNG come to a Council meeting to 
discuss the company’s plans. 
 
Betts suggested that when NNG contacts Zeglin, he should refer the company to the City Administrator. 
 
Hirsch said that the City has made every attempt to contact NNG. 
 
Vose asked where the existing right-of-way would be for the pipeline. 
 
Johnson explained that the right-of way, in this case, means County Line Road, but it also refers to all of 
the rights-of-way throughout the City. 
 
Wallace told Zeglin that as a property owner, he also needs to pursue the matter.  
 
Johnson also suggested that the Zeglins stay in contact with Hirsch. 
 
Pam Reed 
Reed was present at the meeting for an item that was tabled for a later meeting. 
 
13. ADJOURN. 
 
Motion by Wallace, second by Gyllenblad, to adjourn the City Council meeting at 9 p.m. All present 
voted aye. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 



City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m. 

10

 
       
Respectfully submitted by Christina Scipioni, 
Recording Secretary 


